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The Campbell-Garrett Home, built in 1840 by William S. Campbell on land
adjacent to Sharp Springs Campground in Williamson County has retained
its original "park-like" rural orientation as an original plantation estate.

Built in the Italianate style, the rectangular plan is characterized by the 
red brick bearing walls, limestone foundation, and symmetrically spaced, 
story height, round-headed windows and doors punctuated by white pointed, 
arched hood molding enframement with proppendants and closing style arched 
shutters, painted green.

The rectangular plan is divided into equal sections by a center hall extending 
through the structure from each exterior elevation. The rectangular form is 
accentuated by the four-sided wood belvidere. The truncated, hip roof serves 
as a deck platform for the four-sided, one story structure, complete with 
roof promenade and iron balustrade roof crestings.

A pavilion style entrance is affected by the one story wings located at the 
south elevation. The second story gallery style porch, located above the 
main entrance, features the same dimension of depth and is accented horizon­ 
tally by the bracketed cornice and moulded eaves. The roof profile features 
rectangular chimney stacks, symmetrically arranged.

The cross hall plan features matching staircases located in the east and west 
hallways. The stairways converge at the second story hall. The alternate 
arrangement of rooms on the second story follows the design of the first story. 
A third stairway leads to the trunk room located above the main center hall and 
below the belvidere story.

The ell extension located adjacent to the east elevation houses the thirty- 
six foot by fifteen foot formal dining room. The one and one-half story 
addition features a second story room. This room above the dining room has 
a narrow flight of stairs leading to the second story bedrooms.

The second addition located beyond the dining room is connected to the ell by 
an open passageway. This structure was the original, detached kitchen.

Each of the additions are constructed of red brick and feature gable roofs, 
white painted wood doors and window enframements, outdoor shutters and full 
basement, cellar rooms.

The pond is the original spring located on the remaining twelve acres of the 
estate. The basic plan of the estate, Magnolia Hall, and the house is unaltered 
although the main highway to Franklin is no longer Boyd Mill Pike. Alterations 
to the main house include the addition of bathrooms, and other convenience fea­ 
tures. The house, original smokehouse, springhouse and kitchen are reminiscent 
of an earlier way of life.
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A prominent banker and founder of the First National Bank located in Middle 
Tennessee, Mr. William S. Campbell, of Irish birthright, was one of the first, 
early settlers in historic Franklin, Tennessee.

Characteristic of the romantic, picturesque styles—and intended for those 
of social prominence, of exceptional taste, and of a desire for quality in 
all things—Italian Villa style was promoted for its adaptability to the 
landed, American rural environment.

The ante-bellum Campbell-Garrett Home has been selected for its architectural 
significance primarily due to the fact it represents a significantly rare 
example of this particular type of architecture. The cross hall plan and 
style are uncommon in the Middle Tennessee region. Located on the outskirts 
of Franklin, Magnolia Hall has retained its original charm and authentic 
value.

In 1899 the plantation was sold to William Henry Glass. It has been sold 
to various owners since then. A residence, the house is being carefully 
restored by present owners, Mr. and Mrs. Mark Garrett of Franklin, who 
have recently opened their home to visitors by appointment.
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